
 

Download this agenda via the free modern.gov app on your iPad, Android Device 
or Blackberry Playbook.  For information relating to this meeting or to request a 

copy in another format or language please contact: 
, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR  

 

Email: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk - www.torbay.gov.uk  

(1) 

 
 

Friday, 19 February 2021 
 

CABINET 
 

A meeting of Cabinet will be held on 
 

Monday, 1 March 2021 
 

commencing at 4.00 pm 
 

The meeting will be held via Zoom 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88133289123?pwd=cEt3NEFKdDhtZGhlT0NOOTh0QjVOUT09 
 
Meeting ID: 881 3328 9123 
Passcode: 074528 
 
One tap mobile 
+442034815237,,88133289123#,,,,*074528# United Kingdom 
+442034815240,,88133289123#,,,,*074528# United Kingdom 

 
 

Members of the Committee 

Councillor Steve Darling (Chairman) 

 

Councillor Carter 

Councillor Cowell 

Councillor Law 

 

Councillor Long 

Councillor Morey 

Councillor Stockman 

 

 

 

Together Torbay will thrive 

https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/mod.gov/id508417355?mt=8
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en
http://appworld.blackberry.com/webstore/content/26429152/?lang=en&countrycode=GB
mailto:governance.support@torbay.gov.uk
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88133289123?pwd=cEt3NEFKdDhtZGhlT0NOOTh0QjVOUT09


(2) 

CABINET 
AGENDA 

 
1.   Apologies  
 To receive apologies for absence. 

 
2.   Disclosure of Interests  
 (a) To receive declarations of non pecuniary interests in respect of 

items on this agenda. 

 
For reference: Having declared their non pecuniary interest 
members may remain in the meeting and speak and, vote on 
the matter in question. A completed disclosure of interests form 
should be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the 
meeting.  

 
(b) To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in 

respect of items on this agenda. 

 
For reference: Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary 
interest he/she must leave the meeting during consideration of 
the item. However, the Member may remain in the meeting to 
make representations, answer questions or give evidence if the 
public have a right to do so, but having done so the Member 
must then immediately leave the meeting, may not vote and 
must not improperly seek to influence the outcome of the 
matter. A completed disclosure of interests form should be 
returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting.  

 
(Please Note: If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on 
any potential interests they may have, they should contact 
Governance Support or Legal Services prior to the meeting.)  

 
3.   Communications  
 To receive any communications or announcements from the Leader 

of the Council. 
 

4.   Urgent Items  
 To consider any other items the Chairman decides are urgent. 

 
5.   Matters for Consideration 

 
 

6.   Easter Food Poverty and Holiday Activities and Food 
Programme 

(Pages 4 - 9) 

 To consider issues regarding the Holiday Activity and Food (HAF) 
Programme for the Easter Holidays 2021 and to recommend that 
the Council supplements food provision for children for Easter 
Holidays with the purchase of vouchers, including further action to 
address longer term food sustainability in Torbay.   
 
 
 
 
 



(3) 

 Instructions for the Press and Public for joining the meeting  
 If you are using an iPad you will need to install Zoom which can be 

found in the App Store.  You do not need to register for an account 
just install the software.  You only need to install the software once.  
For other devices you should just be taken direct to the meeting. 
 

 

 Joining a meeting  
 Click on the link provided on the agenda above and follow the 

instructions on screen.  If you are using a telephone, dial the Zoom 
number provided above and follow the instructions.  (Note: if you 
are using a landline the call will cost up to 13p per minute and from 
a mobile between 3p and 55p if the number is not covered by your 
inclusive minutes.) 
 
You will be placed in a waiting room, when the meeting starts the 
meeting Host will admit you.  Please note if there are technical 
issues this might not be at the start time given on the agenda. 
 
Upon entry you will be muted and your video switched off so that 
only the meeting participants can been seen. When you join the 
meeting the Host will unmute your microphone, ask you to confirm 
your name and update your name as either public or press.  Select 
gallery view if you want see all the participants. 
 
If you have joined the meeting via telephone, your telephone 
number will appear on screen and will be displayed for all to see 
until the Host has confirmed your name and then they will rename 
your telephone number to either public or press. 
 

 

 Meeting Etiquette - things to consider when attending a virtual 
meeting 

 

  Background – the meeting is public and people will be able to 
see what is behind you therefore consider what you will have 
on display behind you. 

 Camera angle – sit front on, upright with the device in front of 
you. 

 Who else is in the room – make sure you are in a position 
where nobody will enter the camera shot who doesn’t want to 
appear in the public meeting.  

 Background noise – try where possible to minimise 
background noise. 

 Aim to join the meeting 15 minutes before it is due to start. 
 

 



  

 
Meeting:  Cabinet  Date:  01 March 2021 
 
Wards Affected:  All 
 
Report Title:  Easter Food Poverty and Holiday Activities and Food Programme 
 
This decision needs to be implemented 02/03/21 to allow time to purchase vouchers in 
time for the Easter Holidays. 
 
Cabinet Member Contact Details:  Cllr Cordelia Law, Cabinet Member for Children’s 
Services 
 
Director/Assistant Director Contact Details:   
 
Nancy Meehan, Director of Children’s Services 
Joanna Williams, Director of Adult’s Services  
 

 
1. Purpose of Report 
 

To highlight the issues regarding the Holiday Activity and Food (HAF) Programme 
for the Easter Holidays 2021 and to recommend that The Council supplements food 
provision for children for Easter Holidays with the purchase of vouchers. 
 
To mandate further action on food to address longer term food sustainability in 
Torbay.   
 

2. Reason for Proposal and its benefits 
 

We want Torbay and its residents to thrive. 
 
We want Torbay to be a place where we have turned the tide on poverty and 
tackled inequalities; where our children and older people will have high aspirations 
and where there are quality jobs, good pay and affordable housing for our 
residents. 
 

2.1 The proposals in this report help us to deliver this ambition by addressing 
immediate risk of food poverty for children over Easter. 

 
2.2 The reasons for the decision are that the HAF programme does not reach sufficient 

children and does not comprehensively address the issues faced by families in food 
poverty over Easter holidays 2021 

 
 

 

 

Page 4

Agenda Item 6



 

 
3. Recommendation(s) / Proposed Decision 
 
1.1 That Cabinet endorses the proposals for Easter Holidays 2021, which are: 

 
• That Torbay Council funds and issues food vouchers to the wider cohort 

of children identified as being in food poverty for the Easter holidays. EST 
cost £210,000 to be funded from COVID grants. This cohort includes all 
children who may be in food poverty – over 7000 children. 

• That the HAF works in partnership with VCSE partners to issue food 
parcels, activity packs over Easter 

 
1.2 We recognise that we will also need to address half term and summer holiday food 

poverty and propose that Torbay Council and partners work on a solution for half 
term and summer holidays to complement the Holiday Activities and Food 
Programme. 

 
That proposals for a Strategic Food Partnership and Food Action Plan for Torbay 
are brought to Cabinet as a matter of priority. 
 
Those proposals would be that Torbay Council develops a strategic food 
partnership for Torbay, which would take a collaborative approach to create a more 
resilient local food system, which is good for people and planet and addresses the 
following issues: 

 
• Tackling food poverty, diet-related ill-health and access to affordable 

healthy food – prioritising the immediate issue of school holidays 
• Supporting the creation of a vibrant, prosperous and diverse sustainable 

food economy 
• Tackling the climate and nature emergency through an end to food waste 

locally  
• Building public awareness, active food citizenship and a local good food 

movement 
 
 
Background Documents  
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/holiday-activities-and-food-programme  
 
  

Page 5

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/holiday-activities-and-food-programme


 

Supporting Information 
 
 
1. Introduction 

 
1.1 The government has announced the significant expansion of its Holiday Activities 

and Food (HAF) programme. This is an extension of an existing programme which 
was established in 2018, but not all Local Authorities have participated – Torbay 
has not been part of the programme thus far. The programme provided healthy 
food and enriching activities during the summer holidays to children who receive 
benefits-related free school meals.  
 

1.2 The expanded programme, which comprises a £220 million allocation delivered 
through grants to local authorities, will be expanded to reach all local authority 
areas over the Easter, Summer and Christmas holidays in 2021. It is intended to 
address the issue of hunger for children during these school holidays. Torbay has 
been allocated £560,110 of this grant funding to deliver the programme to eligible 
children in the Bay.  
 

1.3 The grant cannot be used to provide food vouchers and must be used to deliver a 
holiday activity provision with a food element (equivalent of one meal), as well as 
support to families as outlined earlier.  
 

1.4 The holiday club places will be available for the equivalent of at least 4 hours a day, 
4 days a week. This provision covers four weeks in the summer, plus a week’s 
worth of provision in each of the Easter and Christmas holidays. This means that 
for the Easter fortnight, two days per week provision is allowed for.  
 

1.5 The free holiday club places must only be targeted at children who are eligible for 
and receiving benefits-related free school meals. 
 
 

2. Options under consideration 
 
2.1 The report is not proposing the ‘do nothing’ option because of the following issues 

with regards the HAF programme:  
 

• Research from other areas who have been involved in the programme pre 
the pandemic and national rollout identifies that the largest reach is only 
25% of the total children eligible for Free School Meals 

• We are not able to use the funding to provide food directly to families via a 
voucher or other funding to partners. So the scheme will not support the 
Torbay Food Alliance, who are able to provide decent food parcels at a low 
cost.   

• Many families will not want to access holiday provision so will not be entitled 
to the food element of this programme, however they will remain in food 
poverty.  

• It is limited to only being available for families during term holiday dates and 
not half term  

 
 
 

Page 6



3. Financial Opportunities and Implications 
 
3.1 The HAF Grant allocation to Torbay Council is £560,110. This must be used to 

deliver holiday activities with a food provision. This must cover 4 days per week, 
over one week at Easter, four weeks for summer and one week for Christmas. 

 
3.2 Estimated cost of £210,000 to be funded from Council funds – for food vouchers of 

£30 per child for the Easter Holidays. 
 
 
4. Legal Implications 
 
4.1 N/A 
 
 
5. Engagement and Consultation 
 
5.1 Engagement was undertaken for the COVID Winter Grant scheme with educational 

establishments and Voluntary Sector Partners.  
 

A steering group with Voluntary and Community Sector Partners has been 
established, in order to co-produce the HAF scheme 
 

 
6. Purchasing or Hiring of Goods and/or Services 

 
6.1 N/A 
 
 
7. Tackling Climate Change 
 

7.1 N/A 

 
8. Associated Risks 
 
8.1 Under the terms of the programme, there will be limited access for children and 

families in food poverty to this support. It is for two days per week for two weeks 
and for FSM children only.  

 
As a comparator, The COVID Winter Grant scheme in Torbay targeted a wider 
cohort of children and families in food poverty. The eligible cohort is a small 
proportion of the 7000 children who accessed the food vouchers under the winter 
grant scheme. To address this issue both DCC and PCC are proposing to 
supplement the scheme with vouchers issued to families.  

 
 
 

Page 7



 
 
Equality Impacts  
 

9. Identify the potential positive and negative impacts on specific groups 

 

 Positive Impact Negative Impact & Mitigating 
Actions 

Neutral Impact 

Older or younger people 
 

This proposal is designed to 
improve issues of food poverty 
facing children 

  

People with caring 
Responsibilities 
 

  No impact 

People with a disability 
 

  No impact 

Women or men 
 

  No impact 

People who are black or 
from a minority ethnic 
background (BME) (Please 
note Gypsies / Roma are 
within this community) 

 

  No impact 

Religion or belief (including 
lack of belief) 
 

  No impact 

People who are lesbian, 
gay or bisexual 
 

  No impact 

People who are 
transgendered 
 

  No impact 

People who are in a 
marriage or civil partnership 
 

  No impact 

P
age 8



Women who are pregnant / 
on maternity leave 

 

  No impact 

Socio-economic impacts 
(Including impact on child 
poverty issues and 
deprivation) 

 

This proposal is designed to 
improve issues of food poverty 
facing children 

  

Public Health impacts (How 
will your proposal impact on 
the general health of the 
population of Torbay) 

 

This proposal is designed to 
improve issues of food poverty 
facing children 

  

10.. Cumulative Council 
Impact 
(proposed changes 
elsewhere which might 
worsen the impacts 
identified above) 
 

 

11. Cumulative Community 
Impacts (proposed 
changes within the wider 
community (inc the public 
sector)  which might worsen 
the impacts identified 
above) 

 

 
 

P
age 9


	Agenda
	6 Easter Food Poverty and Holiday Activities and Food Programme

